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FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS 
 
The following questions have been frequently asked in the past.  Questions have been summarized to assist 
in understanding the question.  The answers provided are considered to be the official answer from this 
agency.  Please carefully review prior to Pre-Bid meeting. This Exhibit will be expanded throughout the process 

as needed and provided in the form of an amendment to the RFP. 
 

1) Do attachments have to be on all six (6) copies or just the original? 
 

The Proposal must be received with one original and 6 copies with all Attachments 
and Exhibits that are requested.  There are two reasons for this: 1) Each Evaluation 
Committee member must have access to a complete copy of the proposal in order 
to fairly evaluate the contents.  2) When the contract is awarded and constructed 
for signature, it must go as a complete document with the RFP copies to the 
various departments within the City.   

2) How much information should be included in our responses?   
 

Bidders should provide the amount of information that they feel is necessary for the 
CITY to make a positive determination on the proposal.  At a minimum, the bidder 
MUST submit the specific information requested for the bid to be accepted. 

 
3) If all of our insurance policies are listed in one letter from the agent, is this sufficient or do 

you need a separate letter for each policy or front page of each policy? 
 

If all of the information requested is on one page, then that is all that is needed. SLAAA 
must be listed as the Certificate Holder on all policies. 
 

4) We have to give 90 days’ notice to terminate our contract. The City is obligated to give 
only 30 days?            Yes, this is correct. 

 
5) In Exhibit E-1, there is reference to “Contract Titles”.  Do employee resumes of key 

personnel get placed in this section?   
 
Exhibit E-1 is used to describe past experience in the service category that you 
wish to bid. Who awarded you the contract?  Who can we call for references, etc.?  
Resumes may be placed in Attachment E. 

  
6) The RFP document calls for “information related to previous and current contracts, which are 

considered identical or similar to the requirements of this RFP.” Does this mean only SLAAA-
related contracts—or all State, Federal, and Local contracts to provide services? For 
example, our agency administers an extensive Head Start contract, which has many similar 
financial, reporting, and legal requirements—should we provide SLAAA with information 
about that contract? 
 
We mean all related contracts, not just SLAAA related contracts.  We want to know 
your history of servicing similar contracts, their size, scope, etc.  Please list all that 
you feel will help us determine your ability to satisfactorily meet our contract 
requirements. 
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7) The RFP states the BIDDER should provide an Organizational Chart, please explain.  

 
We want a detailed chart of the key decision makers, lines of authority and the 
emergency contact persons within the Agency.  We want to know who we must 
contact and deal with in the event of an emergency or other contract related issues.  
 

8) Should I submit my bid in a binder or folder? Can the copies of the proposal response be 
double sided?        

 
No.  We prefer that you use the least amount of binding, covering, etc. as possible.  
We will remove all of the bids from the binder before review.  

 
 Yes.  Copies can be double sided. 
 

9) Please discuss the living wage requirement. Can it be waived?   

 The Living Wage Rate is NOT required for vendors. The caterer is providing a meal 
based on our request at an agreed upon rate.  The bidder will fill out the appropriate 
forms and acknowledgement and submit it as required. Not-For-Profit organizations 
are also waived. 

 
10) Can we attach or submit letters of support with the application? If so, where should we put 

them? 
 

We do NOT want Letters of Support.  Your plan and related documents should be  
sufficient to help us determine the worthiness of the application. 

 
11) Is a City Business License required for all contractors? 

 
A City of St. Louis Business License must be obtained and city earnings tax must 
be paid (if applicable) before the contract can be processed by the City of St. 
Louis. A City of St. Louis Business License is easily obtainable in the ninety (90) 
day period between the award date and the contract start date.  

 
12) What parts of the RFP need to be notarized? 

 
Notarizing is only required where there are specific instructions. "Witness signature" 
does not require a notary.  

 
13) How do we find out about the vendors that are already MWDBE certified within the City of 

St. Louis? 
 

Please go the following website:  https://www.flystl.com/business/business-diversity-
development-1/directories you will find an easy to use directory to help in your search. 

 
14) Do we turn in Exhibits with our proposal? 

 
No, the Exhibits are informational in nature only and not to be returned.  Some 
Exhibits are the forms provided for you to fill out and return as "Attachments" if that 
is what is called for.  The Attachment Cover Sheets are not the same as the Exhibits. 
The Exhibit G cover sheet says “RFP Evaluation Process, Forms, Committee” but 
the Attachment G coversheet says "Performance Bond Acknowledgement." Please 
submit all documentation per the Checklist and Attachment Coversheets. 
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15) With AgingIS, will an agency  receive free access to this once an approved contractor? 
Can access to the database be given to multiple people at the agency? 
 
The cost for AgingIS is not a fixed cost but is dependent on the number of persons  
that have access to the system. There is a layered cost structure that is based on 
use and the cost is subject to change. Multiple sign-ins can be provided to one 
agency, but if it is a shared access, then only one user can be signed in at a time. If 
the agency wants multiple staff to have access to the database at the same time, the 
agency will need to purchase additional accounts. 
 

16) It states in the sample contract that 1/12 of the maximum reimbursement amount is given 
monthly to a contractor. Does a contractor submit information on units served to get this 
reimbursement monthly? If a contractor serves more units that month, can a contractor 
ask for a higher reimbursement amount? 
 
The contractor submits information on all clients served during the month to 
receive the monthly reimbursement. If a contractor serves in excess of the monthly 
allotment, those units are banked. They will be paid during those months that you 
do not reach your monthly maximum. Additionally, we analyze all utilization after 
6 months and amend the contracts to either increase or decrease units so as to 
ensure maximum utilization of our funds (this also depends on funding 
availability). However, there is a set number of units available as stated in the 
contract so if you   exceed your allotment, you might have to scale back in later 
months. 
 

17) Can you please specify which RFP (or related) document(s) reference a required match 
and match ratio? 
 
Please see All Services RFP, Page 19 of 40, Section 9 Reimbursements subparts c 
& d. 
 
If a match is required for this proposal, can the cash match be in the form of Employer's 
cash payment of employer taxes or salary for caregivers proving services under this 
program?   A: YES 
 
Please clarify the matching ratio which states that contracts in the amount of 90% must 
have a 10% match. 
 
This question is best answered with an example. If the amount approved to the 
contractor is $9,000, then the contractor needs to have matching resources in the 
amount of $1,000.00. The total amount used by the contractor to provide case 
management services for older adults would be $10,000. 30% of the match, $300, 
needs to be actual cash. 70% or $700 could be in-kind, such as volunteer time, 
space, equipment. 
 
Any DONATIONS received from the client are considered “Program Income” by 
Federal law and must be reported as such. The “Program Income” must be spent 
first, before grant funds, on all services. In this example, the total amount used by 
the contractor to provide services for older adults would be $10,000 plus whatever 
Program Income is received.  SLAAA funds are NOT designed to cover the entire 
cost of ANY service. Client  Contributions must be solicited and the match must be 
provided by the CONTRACTOR. 
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18) In Exhibit B, the Request for Proposal Checklist, does the executive director initial all of 
these items or can another staff member do this? 
 
The Executive Director will sign all forms unless authority has been delegated to 

 another person. Please include a letter, a memorandum, a copy of Board minutes, 
 etc. that shows that the authority to sign has been delegated. 
     

19) If an agency doesn’t currently have a business license in the City of St. Louis, do we   
need to apply for one before it is determined whether a contract has been awarded.  Can 
we wait to see if we are awarded a contract before applying for a business license? 
  
See the Page 14 of 40, Para 8 NOTES TO BIDDERS, sub-paragraph d. 

 
20) Will the SLAAA website post all the correspondence regarding this RFP? 

 
Yes, all correspondence (the original RFP w/exhibits and future Amendments), will 
be posted. All persons picking up an original bid packet will be notified by email that 
updated information is posted. 

 
21) How do you calculate the number of service days? 

 
 The minimum number of service days is 249. This includes Monday through Friday, 
 minus 11 Federal/ City holidays observed by the City. There may be additional 
 holidays that the senior centers decide to observe. This can increase or decrease 
 depending on the provider and service. 
 

22) We anticipate bidding and submitting rate sheets for several services. Are we to propose 
a unit rate for each service or are the rates established by SLAAA for these services 
under this RFP or do we submit multiple RFPs? 
 
You should submit one complete RFP that includes bid sheets for each service 

 category. You are to propose a unit price for each service.  After receiving all bids, 
 SLAAA will negotiate rates as necessary. 

 
23) We understand that if selected as a CONTRACTOR, we would prepare an operating 

budget.  Is this correct, that a budget would follow notification of an award? 
 
Yes, the BUDGET will be required after the award is made. 
 

24) Will the contract allow for price escalation in years 2 and 3 of the contract? 
 
There is currently no percentage built into the contract. This will be negotiated 

 yearly with the individual providers. 
 

25) Do current providers need to re-submit documentation like 990s? What part of the 990 
must be submitted in the proposal? 
 
Yes, all bidders must submit all of the required information, whether or not they 
have previously submitted it to SLAAA. The cover page of the 990 is adequate, as  
long as it includes all signatures and documentation that the 990 was accepted. 
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26) What are Innovative Programs? 
 
Innovative Programs refer to services that may not have been provided before and 
could be funded in the future. These programs must be able to fit into a pre-existing 
service category. 

 
27) Do we need to submit attachments that aren't specifically applicable to our organization? 
 

Contact David Sykora if you have a concern about a specific attachment. However, 
for attachments like the Business License or the Living Wage Requirement, a 
signature is still required whether or not those specifications are applicable to your 
organization. 
 

28) What is the policy if a Senior Center bids on more than one area, or if a BIDDER  bids 
on a service but is not awarded a contract for those services? 
 
In both cases, if an administratively correct bid was made, but was not accepted, 
 the bid will be kept on record. That bidder will get first right of refusal if we 
have to find another provider of service. In the event that there are several bidders in 
this situation SLAAA will analyze the needs and negotiate as appropriate. 

 
29) Several excel forms won't allow me to enter data.  What can I do? 

 
All forms should be updated on our website no later than Wed, 1/20/21. 
 

30) We are not clear on whether the bid page is supposed to list <our> full unit cost for 
providing an hour of “#### " services or just the dollar amount which <we> are currently 
reimbursed by SLAAA as its unit cost? Similarly, are we just to put in the number of units 
that we were contracted for this year, so that the total is the same as the current year?  
Or should we put in a larger number of units which we would want? 

  
 You should indicate the cost you want to be reimbursed for your services and the 
 number of units you feel you can truly handle.  I can always negotiate down but not 
 up.  Do not use FY21 as your decision guide. 
 

31) ) We are not sure how to determine the # of unduplicated persons served per year for: 
Case Management-Care Coordination, Case Management-In-home Assessment, 
Caregiver-Case Management, Case Management. 
 
Submit your best guess. We don't usually have more than 6-12 hours of case  
management / family caregiver case management per client.  
The completed CM- In-home Assessment is 1 unit per client. 
 

32) With regards to the Case Management- Medicaid, A) We are not sure of the quantity of 
Medicaid assessment requests there are, so we don't know the "# of unduplicated 
persons served per year" number. B) What is the approximate # of hours it takes to 
complete a Medicaid Assessment and Reassessment for your population? 
 
A)This should be a best guess of the amount of work you feel you will be able to do.    
If you feel you can do 50 assessments per month then the unduplicated # would be 
@ 50 x 12 = 600. B) The State does not currently allow us to do initial Assessments 
so we do not have good information to provide.  Regarding the Reassessment, we 
have found it  takes @ 2 to 2.5 hrs...including scheduling, assessment, data entry, 
etc. 



EXHIBIT R 

SLAAA All Services FY 22 R-6 Exhibit R   1/6/21 

 

 

33) Reference Exhibit Q - I signed the Affidavit of Work Authorization and it says that I don't 
need the next page notarized until the contract is awarded?  Should I just get it notarized 
now anyway? 
 
If it says you don't need to do it until the contract is awarded then you can wait or do 
it now….it’s your call. 
 

34)  What is the maximum number of participants in your program? 
 
For the last fiscal year, 10,828 unduplicated clients received services.   
 

35) If we were to receive funds for caregiver or community education, would we be required 
to enter all attendees of an education program in AgingIS? We have found that some 
people don't register in advance or they refuse/decline to provide their contact information 
when they attend a community education program. 
 
No, if you are giving classes they are listed as a 'session' in AgingIS.  You only put  
the # of attendees. 
 

36) If we were to receive funds under INNOVATIVE category to train faith community 
volunteers to conduct screenings and refer clients identified for follow-up, would we enter 
the volunteers who are trained and/or the people who were screened and/or the people 
who are referred to us in AgingIS? 
 
It depends on what you want to be reimbursed for...the training, the screening, or the 
referral.  You make the decision initially, we will negotiate as needed. 
 

37) Can you give an example of an Innovative Program? 
 
Two examples are a fresh food garden and a computer class.  We do not have a 
service for that in the RFP, but you could apply for funding for that under the 
Innovative Programs category.  If there is money, it might be funded.  It must be 
explained and meet our basic criteria.  I am open to negotiating. 
 

38) Should we plan to provide services in-person or virtually due to Covid-19? 
 
Plan to offer both services in-person and virtually. 
 

39) Can we bid on services we have never bid on before? 
 
Yes. 
 

40) What is a unit of service? 
 
Units of service are defined in Exhibit S. SLAAA shall compensate selected 
providers for all qualifying units provided to eligible clients served in the previous 
month until the funds are expended or until the end of the contract period, 
whichever occurs first.  No payment will be made to a provider for any units for 
which the provider has been paid by another source.   
 

41) Should the bids be based on Covid-19 conditions? 
 
Bid as if Covid-19 does not exist and include services needed if Covid-19 continues.    
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42) Can you explain in-home assessment? 
 
In-Home Assessment is a service that is completed in a client's home by qualified 
service providers with an eligible party. The In-Home Assessment service is 
primarily used to screen clients for Home Delivered Meal eligibility. 
 

43) Do we provide our own clients or will clients be referred?  
 
A provider may receive eligible referrals from SLAAA or provide their own eligible 
clients.  
 

44) Can the unit of service cost be negotiated? What happens if I over bid? 
 
Yes, it can be negotiated. SLAAA can negotiate with the Provider anytime during 
the bid process.    
 

45) What is telephone reassurance and will it continue after Covid-19? 
 
Telephone Reassurance is a client centered process of contacting clients to ask 
about their wellbeing and need for services.  Yes, as long as there is funding, it will 
continue. 
 

46) If we decide to provide telephone reassurance services will we need more data system  
(AgingIS) seats? 
 
All bidders who receive an award will be required to have access to AgingIS and will 
enter all pertinent data into AgingIS as directed by SLAAA.  
 

47) Are the mandatory services listed in the RFP mandatory? 
 

Yes. There are no exceptions to this requirement unless a waiver is requested for 
a specific activity and granted by the Executive Director of SLAAA. 
 

48) Is it up to the provider to keep up with amendments or will an email be sent informing 
providers of changes? 

 
It is the responsibility of the provider to review the SLAAA website for updates; 
however, SLAAA will periodically e-mail updates to agencies that have requested 
updates.   
 

49) Will the RFP forms be fillable?  
 

No. The bidder may convert the PDF to Word document. 
 

50) What are the current rates for transportation, meal delivery, homemaker, personal care,  
Medicaid Reassessments, and Case Management services? 
 
Transportation - Regular: $10 to $12 per one-way trip. 
Transportation - Group/Event: $12 to $12.80 per one-way trip. 
Meal Delivery: $2.55 to $3.00 per meal delivered. 
Homemaker & Personal Care: $18 per unit. 
Medicaid Reassessments: $65 per unit. 
Case Management: $45 per unit. 
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51) Is the transportation rate for an unlimited mile trip or is that capped for like 0-5 miles?  For 
instance, if it is a 20-mile trip, what might that look like? 

 
 All trips are based on one-way trips.  No mileage is accounted for within the City of  

St. Louis at this time.  You can propose a rate for trips to the county or longer 
distances. 

 
52) Give some examples of supplemental and miscellaneous services that can be bid on? 

  
The Supplemental Services category is often used for items such as incontinence  
supplies or home repair supplies.  For one grant, we distributed $10 gift cards and 
that was listed under the Miscellaneous Services category. 

 
53) Could you provide me with the average Unit Cost for legal services and minor home 

repairs? 
 
Legal Services  $55.  Home Reapir is by Invoice.  One unit = $50.  Currently home 
repair agencies are authorized for up to 6 units per client for a total of $300.  For 
costs higher than $300, you must seek permission first from the Director.  For 
example, if the cost of materials is $240, then in our database system AgingIS you 
must enter 4.8 units and attach an Invoice with the SCAR. 

 
54) How often are the “facilitator trainings” offered for the Health Promotion courses? 

 
Facilitator Trainings are offered once to twice per year for the Health Promotion 
courses. 

 
55) Who provides the CLAIM certification for Case Management? 

 
The CLAIM certification is provided by the entity which serves as the State Health 
Insurance Assistance Program (SHIP).  Primaris is Missouri’s SHIP. 

 
56) Exhibit S appears to require the Ombudsman Service to use OMBUDS.  The State has 

moved to AgingIS now. 
 
Yes, that is correct.  We will update Exhibit S to reflect this change. 
 

General notes 

 
▪ The City of St. Louis population, including seniors, has declined in recent years. 

2010 Census data shows that there are 49,919 persons over the age of 60 in the City 
of St. Louis. This is a loss of 9,535 persons over the decade. SLAAA has been very 
restrictive on who may receive a home delivered meal due to funding limitations. 

 
▪ The trend nationally is that the congregate meal usage is declining. 

 
▪ Billing 

Catering Invoices must be sent to the senior center by the 2nd working day after 
month in which meals have been delivered to be verified. The senior centers will 
verify, sign, and send to SLAAA. Payment to caterer will be processed per our 
policy. 

 
▪ All providers will submit the monthly SCAR after verifying that all units are correctly 
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entered into AgingIS. All compliance documents will be current prior to the SCAR 
being processed. 

 
▪ Contractors can expect payment anywhere between 7 and 27 days after submission 

of the invoice/SCAR. 
 
Please submit additional questions in writing at any time prior to bid submission. 

 

END 


